025

FILED

SID J. WHITE

SEP 14 1992

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By \_\_\_\_\_  
Chief Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CHARLES HOWARD GIPSON, :

Petitioner, :

vs. :

Case No. 80,367

STATE OF FLORIDA, :

Respondent. :

\_\_\_\_\_ :

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE  
DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA  
SECOND DISTRICT

AMENDED PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES MARION MOORMAN  
PUBLIC DEFENDER  
TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

CECILIA A. TRAINA  
ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER  
FLORIDA BAR NUMBER 865729

Public Defender's Office  
Polk County Courthouse  
P. O. Box 9000--Drawer PD  
Bartow, FL 33830  
(813) 534-4200

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER

TOPICAL

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Trial court case numbers 88-16584, 89-7962, 90-16715, and 90-17327 were appealed together in the instant case.

88-16584

On December 17, 1988, the State Attorney for the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Hillsborough County, Florida, filed an information charging the Petitioner, CHARLES HOWARD GIPSON, with one count of robbery, contrary to section 812.13, Florida Statutes (1987). (R 9-10) This offense allegedly occurred on October 15, 1988. (R 9)

On December 14, 1988, Mr. Gipson pled guilty to robbery. (R 11-12) The trial court placed Mr. Gipson on five years probation. (R 16-17) The sentencing guidelines recommended a sentence of any nonstate prison sanction. (R 13-14)

On July 31, 1989, the trial court revoked Mr. Gipson's probation (R 27) and sentenced him to 2 1/2 years Florida state prison to be followed by five years probation. (R 24-25)

On March 29, 1991, the trial court revoked Mr. Gipson's probation (R 124-125) and sentenced him to nine years Florida state prison, to run consecutively with the sentence in case number 90-17327. (R 38-39, 290-291) The guideline scoresheet permitted a sentence of 4 1/2 to 9 years imprisonment. (R 117, 288)

89-7962

On June 7, 1989, the State Attorney for the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Hillsborough County, Florida, filed an

information charging Mr. Gipson with one count of delivery of cocaine, contrary to section 893.13(1)(a), Florida Statutes (1987). (R 47-48) This alleged offense occurred on May 5, 1989. (R 47)

On June 30, 1989, Mr. Gipson pled guilty as charged. (R 49-50) On July 31, 1989, the trial court placed Mr. Gipson on five years probation, to run concurrently with case number 88-16584. (R 51-52)

On March 29, 1991, the trial court revoked Mr. Gipson's probation (124-125), and sentenced him to nine years Florida state prison, to run concurrently with case number 88-16584. (R 63-64, 290-291) The guideline scoresheet permitted a sentence of 4 1/2 to 9 years imprisonment. (R 117, 288)

90-16715

On November 19, 1990, the State Attorney for the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Hillsborough County, Florida, filed an information charging Mr. Gipson with one count of delivery of cocaine, contrary to section 893.13(1)(a), Florida Statutes (1989), and one count of possession of cocaine, contrary to section 893.13(1)(f), Florida Statutes (1989). (R 73-74) These alleged offenses occurred on August 3, 1990. (R 73) On November 27, 1990, the trial court signed a notice of intent to treat Mr. Gipson as an habitual felony offender. (R 110) On December 4, 1990, the trial court notified Mr. Gipson that it intended to treat him as an habitual felony offender. (R 111)

On February 26 and 27, 1991, Mr. Gipson was tried before a jury. (R 127-200) On February 27, 1991, the jury convicted Mr. Gipson of both charges. (R 113, 114, 197) On March 29, 1991, the

trial court adjudicated Mr. Gipson guilty and sentenced him to thirty years Florida state prison as an habitual felony offender for delivery of cocaine, and ten years Florida state prison as an habitual felony offender for possession of cocaine, to run consecutively. (R 84-88, 290) The sentencing guidelines scoresheet permitted a sentence of 4 1/2 to 9 years imprisonment. (R 117, 288)

90-17327

On November 29, 1990, the State Attorney for the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Hillsborough County, Florida, filed an information charging Mr. Gipson with one count of delivery of cocaine, contrary to section 893.13(1)(a), Florida Statutes (1989). (R 94-95) This alleged offense occurred on October 30, 1990. (R 94) On December 4, 1990, the trial court signed and filed a notice of intent to treat Mr. Gipson as an habitual felony offender. (R 111)

On February 26, 1991, Mr. Gipson was tried by a jury. (R 201-285) The jury convicted Mr. Gipson as charged. (R 112, 282) On March 29, 1991, the trial court adjudicated Mr. Gipson guilty (R 106-107, 290), and sentenced him to thirty years Florida state prison as an habitual felony offender, to run consecutively to his case number 90-16715. (R 108-109, 290) The sentencing guideline scoresheet permitted a sentence of 4 1/2 to 9 years imprisonment. (R 117, 288)

On April 4, 1991, Mr. Gipson filed a timely notice of appeal for all four cases. (R 118)

On appeal, Mr. Gipson raised three issues: (1) the sentencing of Mr. Gipson where the trial judge signed and filed notice of intent to treat Mr. Gipson as an habitual felony offender, (2) imposition of consecutive habitualized sentences upon Mr. Gipson, and (3) running Mr. Gipson's guideline sentences consecutive to Mr. Gipson's habitual felony offender sentences scored on the same guideline scoresheet. The Second District Court of Appeal rejected all three arguments in its June 19, 1992, decision. Upon rehearing, the court affirmed the lower court decision, however contrary to a decision in the Fifth District as to the third issue. The Second District Court of Appeal cites a case that is presently before this Court on the same issue and is in conflict with a decision of the Fifth District.

### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

There are two grounds upon which jurisdiction can be taken in this case: (1) finding that running a guidelines sentence consecutive to a habitualized sentence illegally exceeds the guidelines; and (2) finding that the trial court can impose a guideline sentence consecutive to a habitualized sentence does not illegally depart from the guidelines not only conflicts with case law of another District Court of Appeal but is also an issue presently pending before this Court on express and direct conflict.



## ARGUMENT

### ISSUE I

WHETHER THE DECISION IN Gipson v. State, Case Number 91-1177 (Fla. 2d DCA July 24, 1992), IS IN CONFLICT WITH A DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OPINION HOLDING IT IS ILLEGAL TO IMPOSE A GUIDELINE SENTENCE CONSECUTIVE TO A HABITUAL SENTENCE?

In Wood v. State, 593 So.2d 557 (Fla. 5th DCA 1992), the court held that running the guideline life sentence consecutively with a sixty-year habitual sentence illegally exceeded the guidelines. In Boomer v. State, 17 F.L.W. D774 (Fla. 2d DCA March 20, 1992), the Second District Court of Appeals held that two concurrent nine-year guideline sentences running consecutively with a capital life sentence did not exceed the guidelines. In Boomer, the Second District expressed direct conflict with the Fifth District Court's Wood holding.

In the instant case, the Second District affirmed the running of Petitioner's nine year guideline sentence consecutive to Petitioner's other habitualized sentences scored on the same guideline scoresheet. The Second District noted that it was contrary to the decision in Wood. The Second District Court of Appeal is in direct conflict with the Fifth District Court of Appeals on this issue.

## ISSUE II

WHETHER THE ISSUE IN GIPSON, supra,  
ON ALLOWING THE IMPOSITION OF A  
GUIDELINES SENTENCE CONSECUTIVE TO A  
NONGUIDELINES SENTENCE IS PRESENTLY  
PENDING BEFORE THIS COURT IN ANOTHER  
CASE?

Mr. Gipson contested the imposition of a guidelines sentence consecutive to an habitual sentence, but the Second District Court of Appeal upheld the sentence on the basis of Boomer v. State, 17 F.L.W. D774 (Fla. 2d DCA 1992). The Second District did express direct conflict with the Fifth District's decision in Wood. Inasmuch as this Court has the upward departure issue already before it, this should accept jurisdiction over Mr. Gipson's case. See, Jollie v. State, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981).

## CONCLUSION

In light of the foregoing reasons, arguments, and authorities, Petitioner has demonstrated that conflict does exist with the instant decision and another District Court of Appeal so as to invoke discretionary review. Petitioner has also demonstrated that one of his issues is also presently pending before the Court so as to invoke discretionary review.