SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Where a party seeks discretionary review of a district court of appeal decision in this Court based on conflict, it must be shown that the decision to be reviewed expressly and directly conflicts with the decision of another district court of appeal or this Court on the same question of law.

In the instant case, the Second District Court issued a per curium affirmance without opinion, citing "Boomer v. State, 596 \$0.2d 730 (Fla. 2d DCA 1992); contra Wood v. State, 593 \$0.2d 557 (Fla. 5th DCA 1992)." Thus, the Petitioner invokes the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court on the basis of alleged conflict with Wood and the fact that Boomer is currently pending before this Honorable Court. (Florida Supreme court Case #79,638; oral argument scheduled February 5, 1992).

The trial court has the discretion to impose concurrent or consecutive sentences and statutorily mandated sentences take precedence. The petitioner in this case, as well as the defendants in <u>Boomer</u> and <u>Wood</u>, were subject to two separate kinds of sentences. Imposing the guidelines sentence to run consecutive to the statutory habitual offender sentences was not illegal.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE

WHETHER THE "CITATION PCA" OPINION OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN GIPSON v. STATE, (Fla. 2d DCA, Case No. 91-01177, Opinion filed July 24, 1992) EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH WOOD v. STATE, 593 So.2d 557 (Fla. 5th DCA 1992)

Th≘ district courts of appeal were not created intermediate appellate courts but rather as courts of final appellate jurisdiction. Ansin v. Thurston, 101 So. 2d 808 (Fla. 1958). Thus, where a party seeks discretionary review of a district court of appeal decision in this Court based on conflict, it must be shown that the decision to be reviewed expressly and directly conflicts with the decision of another district court of appeal or this Court on the same question of Article V, §3(b)(3), Florida Constitution; Jenkins v. State, 385 So,2d 1356 (Fla, 1980); Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure.

In the instant case, the Second District Court issued a per curiam affirmance without opinion, citing "Boomer v. State, 596 So.2d 730 (Fla. 2d DCA 1992); contra Wood v. State, 593 So.2d 557 (Fla. 5th DCA 1992)." Thus, Petitioner invokes the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court on the basis of alleged conflict with Wood and the fact that Boomer is currently pending before this Honorable Court. (Florida Supreme Court Case #79,638; oral argument scheduled February 5, 1992).

The State recognizes that a district court's per curium opinion which cites a decision that is either pending review or has been reversed by the Supreme Court constitutes prima facie express conflict.

1 Jollie v. State, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981);

Nelms v. State, 596 So.2d 441 (Fla. 1992).

The effect of the 1988 amendment to §775.084, Florida Statutes was to remove habitual offender sentences from the sentencing guidelines. Consequently, the habitual offender sentences at issue cannot be considered departures. In the instant Gipson case, as well as in Wood and Boomer, the defendants received non-guidelines habitual offender sentences and consecutive guidelines sentences. In all three cases, the defendants were clearly subject to two separate kinds of sentences.

In <u>Wood</u>, the opinion indicates that the Fifth District would not have found an improper sentence if the life sentence were to run prior to the habitual felony offender sentence. Furthermore, the court specifically notes that, upon remand, the trial court may consider the imposition of a departure sentence. <u>Wood</u>, 593 So.2d at 557-558.

A per curium decision, which cites a case pending before this court only on the jurisdictional question, does not constitute prima facie conflict. See e.g., State v. Lofton, 534 So.2d 1148 (Fla. 1988); Harrison v. Hyster Co., 515 So.2d 1279 (Fla. 1987) ["Pending review" means that this court must have accepted the citation PCA for review. The fact that the citation PCA is pending on a notice to invoke discretionary jurisdiction, not yet acted upon by the court, does not give rise to jurisdiction. Padovano, Florida Appellate Practice, Volume 2, 82.10 (1991)}

The trial court has the discretion to impose concurrent or consecutive sentences under §775.021(4)(a) and 8921.16, Florida Statutes (1989). Further, mandatory sentences take precedence. Rule 3.701(d)(9), Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure. The petitioner in this case, as well as the defendants in Boomer and Wood, were subject to two separate kinds of sentences. Imposing the guidelines sentence to run consecutive to the statutory habitual offender sentences was not illegal.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing facts, arguments and authorities, this Court should decline to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in this case.